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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
23 Library Street

	Historic Name:
Tuttle-Barry Tenant House

	Uses:
Present: 
single residence

	Original: 
single residence

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1855

	Source:   
historic maps, deeds

	Style/Form:   
unidentifiable

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
stone

	Wall/Trim:  
vinyl clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  



	Major Alterations (with dates):  


Shed-roof-ell enlarged on rear

Exterior vestibule added to front


2-story wing added north side, late 20th C

Vinyl clapboards added


Window sash replaced



	Condition:  
fair

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:    0.43 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on the south side of Library Street just west of its intersection with Union Street on a lot with mature trees. The area is largely residential.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The Tuttle-Barry Tenant House, built ca. 1855, is a two-story wood frame dwelling located on the south side of Library Street west of Union Street.  It originated as the eastern two-story half of the existing house; the western section is a very recent addition.  The old house was built with a two-room plan with a center entry and augmented by a one-story shed-roof ell as either an original feature or an early addition.  The front façade contains a central entrance flanked by windows with two windows in the second story.  The entrance is contained in an exterior vestibule that is akin to, but much larger than, others found on numerous 18th- and early 19th-century houses in the town.  In this instance, the vestibule is a 20th-century addition.  The gable ends have few windows and the west end in now blocked by a large two-story addition of recent construction that more than doubles the size of the house.  The first story of the addition appears to have contained a garage, with an entrance on the west end wall, but the garage has been incorporated into the house.  Historic doors and windows have been replaced, and the walls are covered with vinyl clapboard siding.  
The building is sited close to the eastern line of a fairly large lot with a large yard covering the east and south parts; the far eastern end of the parcel is part of a wetland that covers the adjoining property.  A paved driveway and parking area is located in front of the added wing.    

The Tuttle-Barry Tenant House, built ca. 1855 is an altered example of a mid-19th-century working-class dwelling in the town.  Retaining its original recognizable form, in spite of a large addition and window replacement, the building is a contributing component of the village district.     
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
Maps and deeds indicate that the house at 23 Library Street was built about 1855. In 1854 Georgetown shoe manufacturer George Jewett Tenney sold a lot of 149 square rods to Samuel L. Tuttle of Charlestown, who already owned land adjoining it.
  
Why Tuttle, a mason, was investing in Georgetown real estate is not known.  A house had been built on the lot by 1856 when the village map ascribes the name “E. Wallace” to the house; he was Tuttle’s tenant.  
Ezra W. Wallace and his family occupied the house 23 Library Street from at least 1856 through at least 1874. Born in New Hampshire, Wallace came to Georgetown with his wife Elsie Bettis Wallace and son William Henry by 1840, when the census enumerated the three in a household in town. In 1850 they were living in a two-family house with the farmer Aquilla Richardson and his wife Ann. Neither is shown as a property owner. Wallace (here called Israel W.) was working as a laborer, William was identified as “idiotic,” and the couple had a five-year-old daughter, Catherine. In 1860 both Ezra and his son were working as farm laborers, and the census shows Ezra Wallace with $100 in personal property. In 1866 Catherine Wallace married the shoemaker Henry A. Hitchcock, and Ezra Wallace had either died or left his family: the 1870 census shows Elsie and her son William living with her married daughter, her husband, and their three-year-old daughter Florence; the family also boarded a bootmaker. Elsie Wallace died in Georgetown in 1874, her son died in town in 1884, and Catherine Wallace Hitchcock died in 1894 of cancer; one local record states that she died “at the almshouse.”

Tuttle sold the parcel to James Barry in June 1875; in 1864 Barry had bought the house next door at 25 Library Street.  That Barry paid only $300 for the house and lot suggests the dwelling was quite modest.
  It appears that James Barry continued to rent the house.
Born in Ireland about 1820, James Barry and his wife Mary Collins appear to have come to the United States with their eldest daughters Ellen and Catherine; according to nearly all records related to him, the couple’s son Joseph Edward (usually shown as J. Edward in censes) was born “at sea” in August 1853, probably during the family’s passage to this country. They were living in Spencer in 1858 when their fourth child, Hannah, was born, and by 1860 Barry was living in this neighborhood with his family, probably renting a dwelling at 25 Library Street, which he would purchase from its owner, Georgetown shoe manufacturer Samuel Little in 1864. Barry was a shoemaker and possibly worked for Little as well.  
Who lived at 23 Library Street after the Wallaces is not known, but the Barry family owned the house until 1929, when James Barry’s unmarried daughter Mary sold it to Annie Tarleton Wildes DeQuoy.
 Born in Georgetown in 1869, Annie T. W. DeQuoy was the daughter of farmer Jeremiah Jewett Wildes and his second wife Sara Allen Tartleton of West Newbury. In 1896 Annie Wildes was working as a cook in Boston when she married waiter Leopold I. DeQuoy, a  native of Woonsocket, Rhode Island. By 1898 DeQuoy, when the couple’s son Stanley Wildes DeQuoy was born, DeQuoy was a caterer in Boston. By 1910 Annie DeQuoy and her son were living on Pond Street in Georgetown, where the census shows her as a farmer; her husband remained in Boston, where by then he ran a restaurant on Arch Street. By 1914 he too, was living on Pond Street, and Annie and Stanley DeQuoy remained there until they bought 23 Library Street; Leopold DeQuoy died between 1918 and 1920.

The 1930 census shows Annie DeQuoy as a sixty-year-old widow at 23 Library Street, valued then at $800. She remained there until 1946, when she sold the property to James P. and Harriette S. Poole, who owned James Barry’s homestead at 25 Library Street. In 195) the Pooles deeded the property to their daughter Barbara and her husband Roland Spofford, who lived at 23 Library Street from at least 1957 until 2001, when they sold  23 Library Street to current owners Joseph D. and Lisa J. Torgersen.

BIBLIOGRAPHY and/or REFERENCES
   


Arrington, Benjamin F., ed. Municipal History of Essex County in Massachusetts. NY: Lewis Historical Publishing Co., 1922.

Field, Jane. A Brief History of Georgetown Massachusetts 1838-1963. Rev. ed. 1988. Georgetown: Georgetown Historical Commission, 1988.

Gage, Thomas. The History of Rowley, Anciently Including Bradford, Boxford, and Georgetown, from the Year 1639 to the Present Time. Boston: F. Andrews, 1840.
Georgetown, Boxford, Byfield, Newbury, and West Newbury, Massachusetts, Directory. Boston: W. E. Shaw, 1901-2, 1905, 1909, 1912, 1914, 1916-17, 1918, 1925. 

Hill, Edwin P.  “History of Georgetown, Massachusetts.” In Standard History of Essex County, Massachusetts. Edited by Cyrus M. Tracey, William E. Graves, and Henry M. Batchelder. Boston: C. F. Jewett, 1878.

Hull, Forrest P. Georgetown: Story of One Hundred Years, 1838-1938. 1938. Reprint. Georgetown, MA: Georgetown Historical Commission, 2006.
Merrill, Samuel. A Merrill Memorial: An Account of the Descendants of Nathaniel Merrill, an Early Settler of Newbury, Massachusetts. Cambridge, MA, 1917-28.
Nelson, Henry M. “Town of Georgetown History.” In Hurd, D. Hamilton. History of Essex County, Massachusetts, with Biographical Sketches of Many of Its Pioneers and Prominent Men. Vol. 1. Philadelphia: J. W. Lewis and Co., 1888.
Sammarco, Anthony Mitchell, for Georgetown Historical Society. Images of America: Georgetown. Portsmouth, NH: Arcadia Publishing, 2002.
MAPS

“Map of the Centre of Georgetown in 1800.” In Perley, Sidney H., “Centre of Georgetown in the Year 1800.”  The Essex Antiquarian: A Quarterly Magazine Devoted to the Biography, Genealogy, History, and Antiquities of Essex County, Massachusetts 2, 7 (July 1898): 201.

Map of Georgetown in 1810 and 1840. In Gage, Thomas. The History of Rowley, Anciently Including Bradford, Boxford, and Georgetown, from the Year 1639 to the Present Time. Boston: F. Andrews, 1840. 320.

“Map of New Rowley Surveyed and Drawn by Philander Anderson 1830.” Georgetown Historical Society.

Map of Georgetown. 1856. In Walling. H. F. A Topographical Map Essex County Massachusetts. Boston: Smith and Morley, 1856.

Atlas of Essex County, Massachusetts. Philadelphia: D. G. Beers and Co., 1872). Plates 59 and 61.

“Town of Georgetown Mass.” and “Village of Georgetown Mass.” In Atlas of Essex County, Massachusetts (Boston: George H. Walker, 1884).

“Georgetown, Mass. 1887.” Drawn and Published by George E. Norris, Brockton, Massachusetts. Troy, NY: Burleigh Lithographic Establishment, 1887.”
PHOTOGRAPHS (all photos by Neil Larson, 2012)
[image: image3.jpg]



23 Library Street: view from NW (top) and W (bottom)
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National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Tuttle-Barry Tenant House, built ca. 1855 is an altered example of a mid-19th-century working-class dwelling in the town.  Retaining its original recognizable form, in spite of a large addition and window replacement, the building is a contributing component of the village district.     
� George J. Tenney to Samuel L. Tuttle, Charlestown, 13 December 1854, SED 504:150.


� Samuel L. Tuttle, Boston, to James Barry, 8 June 1875, SED 932:218.


� Mary A. Barry to Annie T. W. DeQuoy, 20 May 1929, SED 2831:316. On DeQuoy see Frederic Clarke Jewett,  History and Genealogy of the Jewetts in America  (1908), 2:639.


� Annie T. DeQuoy to James P. and Harriette S. Poole, 7 March 1946, SED 3444:337; James P. and Harriette S. Poole to Roland E. and Barbara P. Spofford, 16 February 1950, SED 3724:492; Roland E. and Barbara P. Spofford to Joseph D. and Lisa J. Torgersen, 4 January 2001, SED 16791:292.
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